History of the Frankville Community Presbyterian Church


June 1853….Around the village of Frankville all was heavy timber.  There were very few farmsteads, very few roads as we know them today.  Travel was by oxen, horses, or on foot.  There was no electricity for power or lights.  Many of the houses were heated by fireplaces and the Civil War was soon  to begin.


The following is the Order of Organization of the Frankville Presbyterian Church:  On June 10th 1853 at the request of a group of people from Washington Prairie, a committee composed of Reverend Porter and Reverend Mason of the Presbytery of Cedar(located in Davenport), appeared in the vicinity for the purpose of looking over the possibility of establishing a church in Frankville.  After due consideration, it was decided that such a venture was feasible and it was so ordered.


On June 10, 1853 Rev. Porter preached from Luke 18:22.  The next day June 11, Rev. Mason preached from John 4:24.  Following these two services the committee proceeded to organize the church.  The following persons were examined for their Christian faith and received into membership by certificates of dismission from the Presbyterian Church of LaPorte, Indiana:  Mr. Benjamin Beard, Mrs. Mary Ann Beard, Mr. Thomas Beard, Mr. William Beard, and Mrs. Sarah Maria Beard.  On the same day the following persons were examined for their scriptural knowledge and piety and received as members of the church:  Mrs. Sarah Ann Lyons, Dr. M.B. Lyons, Mrs. Lucy Ann Thornburg, Mrs. Lydia Beard, Mrs. Margaret B. Cutler, Miss Rachel Beard, and Mr. Alfred Beard.


On Sunday June 12, Rev. Porter preached from John 3:36.  After the sermon he baptized Alfred Beard, Leonard Cutler, and Hammon Beard.  Benjamin Beard was chosen the first ruling elder.  The first pastor was Rev. Jacob Schwartz.


The members of the new church probably met in homes when it was first organized and then in the church Frank Teabout, the founder of Frankville, built for them.


The church was under the guidance of the Cedar Presbytery of Davenport at the time of its organization.  A year later it became affiliated with the Dubuque Presbytery.  In the 1970’s up to the present the church has belonged to the John Knox Presbytery.  


In 1868 there were five ruling elders and an active choir.  These elders were busy visiting backsliders of the congregation.  They reprimanded them for not keeping the Sabbath, dancing in their homes, and not doing their churchly duties.


In 1890 a building committee was selected.  They let a contract to build a new church.  It was begun in May and finished in July 1890.  It cost $1200 to complete the building and was located in the northeast corner of the community cemetery.  On the day of dedication, July 27th, an offering of $125 was received.  The church was fully paid for on that day.  Five years later in 1895 a parsonage was built for a cost of $650.  The ladies society, (DYNT), furnished the downspouts and financed the cistern for a total of $15.  In October of 1895 a barn was built to house the minister’s horse.  It cost $22.50.  


On October 10, 1898 it was decided to yoke together the Frankville and Rossville Presbyterian churches in the use of the same minister to service the two churches.  The Rev. Baird was employed as the minister for the two churches at the salary of $250 per year.  This arrangement with Rossville lasted for only six months.  Later on Frankville and Rossville would again become yoked for a good many years.  

The life of the two Frankville churches were frequently intertwined.  Since both pastors sometimes served two congregations, members of the churches would attend the church having a minister in the pulpit.  Also during this time,1880’s to 1920 the Methodist church in Frankville and the Presbyterian church shared Sunday school classes together.  It was called the Union Sunday School.


In 1920 Frankville made national news.  Due to the steady decline in the size of both congregations, it was decided to combine the two into a community church under the auspice of the Dubuque Presbytery.  Some time prior to May 5, 1920, Dubuque Presbytery purchased the Methodist church of Frankville for $500.  At a congregational meeting of the Frankville Presbyterian Church dated May 5, 1920 it was decided to move the Presbyterian church from its old location down the street and join it to the Methodist church at the location occupied by the Methodist church.  A basement was dug and finished into a dining room and kitchen.  This all took place during 1920 and 1921.  Art prism glass was voted for the windows of the newly remodeled church on October 20, 1920.  It cost roughly $6000 for the remodeling.  The finished edifice was valued at $25,500.  The remodeled church was dedicated with a four day celebration.  Rev. J. Hinkhouse, President of Lenox College, was in charge of the dedication services.  


The stained glass windows that are the focal point of the sanctuary were purchased with funds from the Frankville community area.  They are in memory of Harold Spaun.  A pastor once remarked that they were Methodist windows.  Harold Spaun, who belonged to the Methodist church, was the only local man killed in World War I.  The young man was killed Sept. 26, 1918 near the end of the war.  His funeral was not held until 1921.  This was after the new community church was remodeled.  


On Oct. 23, 1921 it was decided to allow the community room to be used Tuesday and Thursday evenings for basketball.  It was played by the young men of the area and enjoyed by local spectators.  Around 1918 the village school started a 9th and 10th grade high school.  From 1918-1920 the classes were held in the Presbyterian church dining room.  From 1921 through 1926 grades 1-4 were held in the community church dining room.  Senior members of the congregation remember attending school here and swinging on swings put up in the kitchen.  


The church was the community center for the area.  It was the place where young people met, young married couples got together, Willing Workers did active service, showers were held after a couple was married at home or the parsonage.  The local Christian Temperance Union held local and regional meetings in the lecture hall.  In Sept. of 1925 one group, however, was refused the use of the lecture hall.  That group was the Ku Klux Klan, and in response to the session’s refusal a cross was burned on the property of the manse.


In 1925 the community room took on a new look with a platform or stage being added to one end of the room.  That also put an end to the basketball games.


In 1946, the manse that was built in 1895 was sold for $1000.  It had been moved in 1920 to the corner across from the village school.  The church then purchased the Hager house for $3000.  This is the house where Jeff and Sharon Feickert now live.  The Hager house was sold in 1964 for $4850.  The church then purchased the Pilgrim house for $3000, but some work on the well had to be done at an additional cost of $1500.  The Pilgrim house was sold in 1978 for $15000.  At the present time the church does not own a manse.  


DYNT(Do Ye Next Thing), Willing Workers, Presbyterian Women, are 3 women’s organizations that have served this church.  Marion Brandt Laterman was appointed church organist/pianist in 1934 and has served up until just recently.  The first female elder, Charlotte Walby, was elected in 1949.


In the 1950’s through 1972, Frankville was yoked with Rossville Presbyterian Church.  From 1972 to 1974 Frankville entered into a yoke with Bethlehem Presbyterian and Rossville Presbyterian to form the Tri-Church Mission.  It was during this 3 way yoke that our shepherding plan was initiated.  It is still in use today.  After 1974 and to the present Frankville has been yoked with Bethlehem alone.  

In later years many projects were done at the church to improve the life of the church.  Remodeling, lowering of some ceilings, etc.  The kitchen had a major remodeling in 1998.

At present there are 46 active and 37 inactive members, an active sunday school which shares a bible school program with Postville Presbyterian, and a respected women’s group(PW).  James Walker is currently the pastor.  The Frankville Community Presbyterian Church has served this community well and will do so in the future.

